A history of the Ty y graig/Tan y graig/Rock (House) Farm, Eglwyseg.

Some 750 ft above sea level and tucked into a fold under the limestone of the Eglwyseg crags,
the old Rock House Farm now comprises 3 homes, Rock House, Rock Farm & Craig yr. With Bryn-
goleu and the ruin of Ty-nant lying further east in the minor fault of the Ty—nant gorge.

History:

The earliest definitive references to Ty y Craig (Rock House) occur in the 1840’s, being the 1841
census of Eglwyseg, then known as Eglwys Eagle and the 1844 tithe. At this time, it amounted to
39 acres 0 rods and 26 perches, farmed by David Jones from the Wynnstay estate. The tithe
being £4, compared with 1s 1d for Bryn goleu (Hill of light), being paid by Edward Roberts for 3
rods and 21 perches and the surprisingly 1s 5d being paid by Robert Davies for Ty-Nant (House of
the Stream) with only 1 rod and 27 perches.

To some degree dispelling the belief that people all died early in the 19t century, according to
the 1841 census living with David (aged 55) and his wife Ann also 55, was an Ann Jones of 90
presumably David’s mother. Also present were Rebecca Jones 15 and Thos Hughes 15 a man
servant. As the Jones presumably lived at the farmhouse, it is interesting to speculate where the
other two habitations under the Ty-y-Graig entry are. We have a Thos Davies 70 Lab, Ann Davies
70 and Margaret Roberts 75 of independent means (Ann’s sister?) in one and Edward Hughes 70
Blacksmith & Gwen Hughes 80 the other.

Tai-Newyddion appears on the 1844 tithe map and is known at times to have been a three-family
dwelling. However, if it was there 3 years earlier it may have been a single home and certainly
Thos Davies was living there in 1844. As there are entries for Bryn goleu and a second dwelling
(possibly Ty nant)

There exists good records of both the land taxes and rents prior to 1800 but making the jump
back between these and the 1840 records is problematical. The land taxes etc refer to the owner
and tenant, rarely to the property itself. But from comparison of the land taxes for the sizes of
various farms in the valley where these can be identified and by a process of elimination. Itis
likely that the farm rented by Griffith Lloyd in 1713 is Ty y graig, which fits in well with the age of
the farmhouse itself. However further research will be required to fully confirm this, and which
should be possible if the 40-year gap between 1841 and 1790’s can be traced.

Local employment:

Inspection of the local records show that as well as the obvious agricultural employment and
allied activities (eg smith), the local limestone and slate would have provided further livelihoods.
There are three limekilns just above Bryn Goleu, two known mines within in a mile on the
limestone escarpment and the local slate quarries on the horseshoe pass and closer still Aber
Gwern & Pant Glas.

The deeds for Rock Farm date only from the 1880’s when the Farm (known at that time as Tan-y-
graig) was part of the Wynnstay estate, however it would have been a Wynnstay property from
the early 1700’s. The Farm eventually left Wynnstay hands in 1936 when it came into the
possession of Harry Best and Henry Robertson.
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In 1947 Harry Best sold it to Roger Kynaston for £1,100. However, a Walter Roger Owen
Kynaston had an interest in the farm during the later days of the Great war and Roger may be
have been a relation. At that time, the Farm comprised some 51.5 acres (including Tai-
Newyddion). Tradition has it that Roger paid for the farm in part from the proceeds of culling the
oak woodland (348), even today remnants of the oak stumps can be found. In the years that
followed the Farm was to be slowly to be broken up, in many ways mirroring the changing social
conditions and farming practices of the last half of the 20™ century

Roger then moved to Crickheath Hall near Oswestry and sold what was then described as Rock
House Farm or Tanygraig to Tony Smith of Gwern-y-Ffynnon in 1957 for the princely sum of
£2,650. At this point it stood at 51.1 acres, Tai-newyddion having been sold to John and Mona
Davies in ’52 and a small parcel of land in ’54. Tai-newyddion was later bought by Hugh Stanton
a retired civil servant, he knocked what in effect was still recognisable as three cottages into one
and used it as a holiday home for many years.

In 1979 Richard Harold Buckley Lewis a JP from Rhault bought the farm for £60,000, at which
point it now stood at 51.6 acres, although with no apparent change in the actual fields held.

On his death in early '83, it eventually passed to Thomas Elvet Buckly and Gertude Lewis of Plas
Eglwyseg Farm in 1986. In the 5 years that followed the dismemberment of the farm became
complete with various parts being sold off, 34 acres to a farmer from Cymmo, some 10 acres to
the owners of Bryn goleu, the Farm house plus the former oak wood was sold as well in 1988,
with the somewhat dilapidated barn opposite being sold at the time that Elvet sold Plas Eglwseg
farm itself in 1991. He left the area and moved to Aberdeenshire where he continued farming.

Rock House Rock Farm Craig yr Aderyn
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Rock House

Prior to an extension to the rear of the house in the mid 1990’s, it was a 2 storey, 3 window
house, the result of extending and raising the original dwelling. This occupied the centre and
right side of the present house; it has a lobby entry and 2 unit plan with back to back fireplaces.
From the entrance, the principal room or hall, is on the left, the parlour on the right. That these
rooms are nearly equal in size suggests that the house is a late example of the vernacular
tradition, perhaps late 17t or early 18 century. The hall has the larger of the fireplaces, with a
timber lintel and plain chamfer. It also has a plain stop-chamfered cross beam. The parlour has a
smaller stone-lintelled fireplace. The face of the stone appears to have come away, which may
have taken away some relief carving (not an unusual feature of 17™ Century stone fireplace
surrounds).

The heightening of the house, which can be distinguished by the different shade of stonework at
the upper level, has meant that the original stack and roof structure have not survived. The new
roof has a flatter pitch and its brick chimney (aligned with the doorway, giving away the internal

plan of the house) is 19 ™ century, as are the casement windows, with the lower story windows

being later enlargements.
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Census returns

Names(s)

1841 census 1), 2) etc separate
dwellings.

1851 Census

1861

1871

1881

Ty y Graig/Tany
Graig/Rock Farm

1) David Jones 55 Farmer, Ann
Jones 55, Ann Jones 90 Ind,
Rebecca Jones 15, Thos Hughes 15
MS. 2) Thos
Davies 70 Lab, Ann Davies 70,
Margaret Roberts 75 Ind.

3) Edward Hughes 70 Blacksmith,
Gwen Hughes 80.

Evan Jones (6) farmer

David Jones 26, Jane
Jones 26

Roberts Roberts 55 Farmer,
Hannah Roberts 54, Thos Hughes
17 Servant

Bryn Goleu & Ty Nant

1) Edward Frances 30 Ag L, Jane
Frances 25, John Frances 2.

2) Edward Jones 35 Ag L, Joseph
Jones 35, Eliz Thomas 9, John
Jones 7, Rober Jones 5.

John Roberts (2) Slate Q,
Edward Francis (7) Ag |

Evan Jones (4) Ag L

William Jones 40 (5)
Quarryman

Edward Roberts 40 Lab, Mary
Roberts 47, Edward 13 & John 12
Roberts

Tai Newyddion/Craig
yr Aderyn

No direct reference but probably
dwelling 2) under Ty y Graig
above.

John Williams (2), William
Morris ( 4), Mary Williams
(1), David Williams (3), Jane
Roberts(1)

David Williams (5), John
Roberts (3), John Williams
(2) Agls

Church of England in
Buildings

From 1851 onwards the brackets refer to number of others in the family.
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Late 1880s showing Rock House and barn
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1873 1903 Showing enlarged barn
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1844 Tithe map
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Rock Farm

9 of 12



10 of 12



Craig yr Aderyn (Rock of the Bird, formerly known as Tai-Newyddion = new
houses)

Apart from what has already been said little is known about this pleasant vernacular
cottage. Certainly in existence in 1844, it was for many years three cottages and his
known to have been hired as can just be made out in the photograph. . Interestingly
what looks like a later extension at the back is evident in the 1844 Tithe plans, and
was very likely built at the same time as the cottage itself.
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